
l. 

Others: 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Sandra Larson, Brittany Boothe, Thomas Cotter, Victoria Hedenstrom, and Thomas Laing 

Ric Ingham, City Administrator; Kay Bork, Community Development Director; Shauna Hartz, Finance 
Director; Kyle Schauer, Public Works Director; Katie Babits, Management Analyst; Lisa Garbett, 
Associate Planner; Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder, Joan Mariner, Jonathan Russell, and 
Anthony Clemons 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Sandra Larson called the Veneta City Council to order at 7:03 p.m. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Brittany seconded the motion. 
VOTE: Thomas Laing, aye; Thomas Cotter, aye; Sandra Larson, aye; Victoria Hedenstrom, 

aye. 

The consent agenda as approved included minutes for April 14, 2014 Work Session, minutes for April 
14, 2014, Accounts Paid through April29, 2014, Accounts Payable through May 7, 2014, Public Works 
Activity Report for April 2014, Annual Liquor License Renewals, Civic Calendar for May, 2014. 

4. PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 493; ALLOWING BACKYARD CHICKENS 
a. PUBLIC HEARING- Proposed Amendment to Land Development Ordinance 493; Allowing Backyard 

Chickens 
1) Mayor Larson opened the Public Hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
2) Staff Report 

Garbett reviewed the staff report outlining additional provisions to the Land Development 
Ordinance to allow backyard chickens on lots in residential zones of less than one acre. She 
said at the April 1, 2014 meeting, the Planning Commission recommended these provisions 
come to the Council for approval. The recommended provisions include only chickens and no 
other fowl will be allowed. Garbett said the Planning Commission also recommended a chicken 
permit but did not discuss the details nor did staff present specific language on this subject. 
She said legal counsel reviewed the language and made minor recommendations and updates; 
the additions are underlined and the deletions are stricken out. Staff developed a chicken 
permit application which was also reviewed by legal counsel and included in the packet. Staff 
assured the Council that the findings are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and State 
planning goals, including providing public notice. Garbett also pointed out an additional public 
comment was received this afternoon and was provided to the Council. 

Garbett reviewed a recommendation made by legal counsel after the packets were delivered 
that read as follows: "backyard chicken permit will be revoked in the event the permit holder 
violates any section of ... " 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Garbett said the permit holder is subject to a fine 
if a violation is determined to exist. She said that change was made after legal counsel 
reviewed the final packet materials. 

Bork said the adopting ordinance includes two exhibits but only one will be adopted. She said 
the two exhibits refer to adopting the ordinance with or without the permit language. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 1 



3) Questions from Council 
In response to questions from Mayor Larson, Bork said the exhibit "with permit language" 
includes a provision that establishes a fee. She said the Council may establish a fee which can 
be adopted by resolution at a later date. She said permits would still be processed but there 
would be no fee attached until and if the Council chose to do so.Borks.aidoncearesidenthas 
submitted their chicken permit information, it should take staff about 30 minutes to determine if 
they are in compliance. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Bork said the Planning Commission discussed 
requiring a license or a nominal one-time fee (application) which would not renew every year. 
She said the fee could be $20 to $40. She said the Planning Commission did not recommend a 
specific fee amount. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said low income families should be considered when setting the fee 
amount. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Bork said the Planning Commission 
discussed potential rodent issues but it was the opinion of the Commission that chicken food 
wouldn't necessarily attract rodents any more than dog or cat food. She said they 
acknowledged the potential but decided that chicken food couldn't be singled out over another 
type of pet food. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Hartz said the permit fees collected would go 
into the General fund. 

The Council had a thorough discussion regarding setting a flat fee or permit per household, or if 
the fee would be associated with the chicken coop, and if any fee or permit would include an 
annual or bi-annual renewal process. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said if we start getting calls about 
how to dispose of chickens, staff can do some research. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said dog license fees don't cover the full 
cost of enforcement but they help. 

4) Public Comment 
Joan Mariner, 25712 Cochran Ct., Veneta, OR 
Ms. Mariner said she has not attended a Council meeting in quite some time but about a year 
ago she attended a meeting and spoke about the benefits of backyard chickens. She said 
chickens can be good neighbors and good stewardship of chickens doesn't necessarily attract 
rats. She said she questions requiring a permit and asked how would the City enforce it? She 
suggested a fee could be connected for complaints and smells and if there's a violation, there 
will be a fine. She said it's very easy to encompass chickens and likely coops will be 
homemade. She again felt a fee should be associated with a violation if residents don't keep 
good husbandry practices. 

Johnathan Russell, 24784 Terra Ln., Veneta, OR 
Mr. Russell said he runs a Facebook page along with two other local community pages which 
assist with re-homing chickens. He said it's very easy to re-home unwanted chickens. He felt 
requiring a permit may be an intrusive process and it seems a bit drastic. He said the City 
doesn't ask about his cat or dog unless a complaint is made. Mr. Russell said as far as 
spending a lot of money on chicken coops, he spent $199 at Coastal Farms in Eugene and its 
way more than his chickens need. He said he split his backyard; half for his family and half for 
the chickens. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 2 



Anthony Clemons, 25156 Cherry Ln., Veneta, OR 
Mr. Clemons said he is against allowing backyard chickens. He said he has petitioned the 
Planning Commission and the City Council to keep Ordinance No. 493 the way it is. He said the 
Planning Commission recommended 1500 sq. ft. per chicken and they did away with the 5000 
sq. ft. minimum lot size. He said that was a mistake. He said it should be 6000 sq. ft. minimum 
lot size. He said the experts recommended a minimum of three chickens on lots 5000 sq. ft. or 
larger and anything smaller they recommend not having chickens. He said the comments are 
negative and positive. He said if chickens are allowed, there should be a fee associated with the 
permit. He said it takes time and money for the City to review everything but because he wants 
to keep the ordinance the same, he has to pay for public records in order to get information. He 
said there should be a fourth option for the Council to consider and that should be to deny 
changing Ordinance No. 493. 

5) Council Deliberation 
In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Mr. Clemons said almost 100% of the consensus 
said everyone should have a minimum of three chickens because of the pecking order, 
loneliness, etc. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Bork said the ordinance doesn't specify a flat 
maximum and minimum number of chickens allowed. She said one chicken per 1500 sq. ft. will 
be allowed and the average lot size in Veneta is 5000 sq. ft. Bork said a quarter acre lot would 
allow for no more than 1 0 chickens. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Bork said if and when a violation is established 
then a fee can be assessed. She said usually staff tries to remedy the violation; if there's a 
violation staff works with the resident, if not, a citation is issued into Veneta Municipal Court. 

Brittany Boothe said she liked Ms. Mariner's suggestion to have the fee come in on the back 
end of a complaint especially for habitual violators. Those that are in compliance don't get 
penalized. She said there should be a fee schedule in place to penalize people for non
conformance to the code, i.e., roosters, odor, rodents, rather than a set fee that everyone pays 
regardless. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Brittany Boothe said she agreed with Mr. Russell, 
that maybe the City is overstepping the guidelines. She said a permit process sounds 
cumbersome and based on the spreadsheet we really haven't received many complaints. She 
said unfortunately, we don't know the number of people that are currently in violation of the code 
but she felt the chicken ordinance isn't a high priority issue. She said she's not keen on 
charging residents to have chickens but residents operating outside of the code should be the 
ones to foot the bill. 

Bork read the penalty section that states if they violated a provision of the code, a person shall 
be fined not less than $105 and no more than $500 for each violation up to $2500. She said if a 
resident was required to move their coop, had a rooster, or were told they could no longer have 
chickens, they would be given a specific amount of time to comply. She said if they didn't 
comply there's a potential violation and fine. 

Ingham said anytime a fine is assessed and collected, the City does not retain all of those funds; 
a portion goes to the State of Oregon and Lane County. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Mr. Russell said his lot is just over 6000 sq. ft. 
and he has four chickens. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 3 



Thomas Cotter said if residents are required to obtain a permit then they know exactly what is 
expected of them. He said it's unfortunate that charging residents makes them more 
responsible but if it's not prohibitive, its well within the City's good judgment to do so in order to 
avoid problems rather than allowing residents to get chickens and set up coops that aren't 
regulated. 

Brittany Boothe agreed and said requiring a permit would be helpful so people know what's 
expected to maintain a safe environment, but she disagrees that a fee would keep people doing 
the right thing. Brittany Boothe made a point that a fee does not make residents more 
responsible. 

Thomas Cotter said if we have to go out and review the coop to make sure it complies with City 
code, then we'd have funds to draw from, otherwise we're spending funds from other areas. He 
suggested a $25 bi-annual license. 

Brittany Boothe suggested a one-time free permit should be issued. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said the Council could approve Ordinance 
No. 511 with the permit language tonight and direct staff to present a resolution with a 
suggested fee. 

Ingham said with the feedback from the Planning Commission, staff felt it was important to get 
the information out and that it's appropriate to forego a fee. He said the renewal process could 
likely be more expensive than it's worth. He said staff is recommending a one-time permit. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said because there are some 
compliance issues. He said the use of "permit" rather than "registry" would be better language. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said there's nothing on the spreadsheet that identifies certain residents 
with chickens. She said she agrees if we're changing code, chicken keeping should be 
monitored especially in more dense areas of the City. She said if the City receives a complaint 
a process should be in place for how we respond. She said it's respectful to those who don't 
want chickens. She said if you want them, you have to pay to have them. 

Brittany Boothe said if there's a complaint there's a process that staff would follow. 

Bork said the resident would need to fix the violation or get fined. 

Mr. Russell said if residents have to pay to have chickens they're more likely to be responsible. 
He said Eugene does not require a permit and the complaint form is smaller. He suggested 
adopting more of a license not a permit and felt it's intrusive for the City to require so much 
information. He suggested a fee of $5 per chicken, and only require a name and address. He 
agreed there should be some sort of payment but it should be a nominal amount. He said no 
other animals in the City have such an intrusive permit attached. 

Thomas Cotter said stray dogs go through a hefty fine process. He said because it's a new 
situation, he felt a permit process would require residents to think about getting chickens before 
they just go out and buy them and not properly care for them. He said it's in the City's best 
interest to have a code of conduct. 

Mr. Russell said the dog permit process has very little teeth. He said three of his neighbors 
complained about a stray dog on the same day. He said the dog jumped on his child while they 
were walking and the dog ran off. He said there's not much enforcement when it comes to 
dogs. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page4 



Thomas Cotter said he would rather have the rules enforced than no rules at all. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Joan Mariner clarified what she meant by 
cutting a hole in a carport to allow for the chickens to access a run from an enclosed coop. 

Mr. Clemons said everyone knew there were illegal chickens but no one went out and enforced 
it. He said but now you will enforce the ordinance. He said we all know anything that happens 
in the City or that the City does, is going to cost money. He said permit holders should have to 
pay for having chickens because it's going to cost the City money. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Bork said the coop has to be 20ft. from an 
abutting dwelling and it can't exceed 100 sq. ft. 

Thomas Cotter said he doesn't see how a pen built in the garage and attached to an outside 
run, would be a problem. 

Bork said the Planning Commission was focused on setting setbacks and it likely wasn't a 
thought when Commissioners were deciding on this. Some may or may not be able to meet the 
code. She said the Council has a couple of options. If the Council wanted to adopt the 
ordinance as a non-emergency that would allow 30 days for enactment and give staff time to 
bring back a fee, if the Council chose to include a fee. She said there are two options. The 
Council could adopt the ordinance without permit language but establish a license fee, like a 
dog license. She said this would allow the City to enforce a license under the municipal code or 
we could have a permit with a fee and the Council would adopt the permit language. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Bork said a third option would be to adopt the 
ordinance with the permit language and add a fee at a later date. She said staff could come 
back with a proposed fee with that permit. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said she will send an update to those 
residents (with chickens) that have been attending the meetings. 

Mayor Larson said it does seem reasonable to require residents with smaller lots to submit a 
permit application. 

6) Mayor Larson closed the Public Hearing at 8:06 pm 

5. COUNCIL BUSINESS AND REPORTS 
a. Business 

1) Lane County Sheriff's Office (LCSO) Activity Report 
Sgt. Osborne was not in attendance at tonight's meeting. 

2) Request from Food for Lane County to use Broadway Park for Summer Food Program 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve use of Broadway Park to Food for 
Lane County for the summer lunch program. Brittany seconded the motion 
which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

3) Arbor Day Proclamation 
Mayor Larson read the proclamation and declared the fourth Friday in April as Arbor Day. 

b. Councilor/Committee Liaison Reports 
Thomas Cotter said he attended the medical marijuana dispensary workshop in Salem which was 
sponsored by the League of Oregon Cities (LOC). He said representatives from many cities talked 
about the ordinances they had passed. He said it was it was an excellent program but he felt it was 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council Page 5 
May 12, 2014 



somewhat one sided. The Oregon Heath Authority has a responsible approach and presented it 
well. 

Brittany Boothe said she also attended the workshop and said it was very interesting and worth 
attending. She also said it was interesting to hear from the folks that created the 30 pages of rules 
and regulations. She said the workshop materials are on line or her materials are available for 
copying if anyone is interested. She said the workshop made it clear that MMDs are still evolving. 
She also attended last week's Park Board meeting. Members provided a recap of the Earth Day at 
Veneta Elementary and the Easter Egg Hunt. She said 400 students participated at the Earth Day. 
She said there were booths set up for projects like plantings, a petting zoo, and recycling. She said 
75 volunteer hours were logged in and the event came in well under budget. Dennis Paronto, 
Chairman of the Easter Egg Hunt committee said the Hunt gets better and better every year. She 
said 375 children participated in the Hunt and approximately 170 volunteer hours were logged in. 
She said the new manager at Ray's would like to partner with event organizers for future hunts. 
Also a volunteer arborist has inventoried City Park and Fern Park is next to be inventoried. She said 
Schauer and Pool Manager Cornelius asked the Park Board to assist with two summer pool events. 

Mayor Larson said the Distinguished Service Awards took place at Deep Woods. She said Sterling 
Pew received the Man of the Year award and Tresa Miller received the Woman of the Year award. 
The lifetime achievement awarded was given to Wilbur Quiring. Mayor Larson said Veneta hosted 
the Mayor's Roundtable on April 16th which was a good meeting and well attended. Mayor Larson 
said it was the second meeting that Pat Farr has attended. She said he asked for input about 
increased vehicle licensing fees. Saturday Mayor Larson said she attended the Wealth Works 
Northwest workshop sponsored by Rural Development Initiative (RDI). She said it was a very 
interesting economic development framework based on a community network/web. She said over 
the Mother's Day weekend, the Applegate Pioneer Museum hosted an open house and dedication 
of the new addition. She said it was a nice event and the Founding Fathers poster was 
showcased. Mayor Larson said with the new addition the museum is much more user friendly and 
some of the materials are more easily accessed. Mayor Larson said there is an old one room 
school house that is attached to Elmira Elementary which she wonders what will happen to it if and 
when the school bond measure passes. She said it's important that it stay intact and she took a 
picture of it. 

6. STAFF REPORTS 
1. Community Development Director ......................................................................... Kay Bork 

a) Backyard Chickens 
i. Agenda Item Summary 

Bork reviewed the options Council had with regard to adopting the ordinance to allow backyard 
chickens on lots less than an acre in size. She said the ordinance has two exhibits attached, one 
with the permit language and one without. She said the ordinance is written to be passed by 
emergency, but if the Council chooses, the ordinance can be adopted by non-emergency. She 
said if the Council chooses to adopt the ordinance without the permit language, the Council has 
the option of creating a license and the license language could be added to the municipal code 
similar to a dog license. If the Council chose to adopt the ordinance without the permit language, 
a fee could still be enacted through a licensing process or the provisions can be adopted with the 
permit language. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said if the ordinance was processed with a 
license, it would require residents comply with City ordinances. She said the license would still 
reference the ordinance but we wouldn't require a detailed application for staff to review. She said 
that would address Mr. Russell's comment that the application be less intrusive and the City would 
take the responsibility in providing those provisions. Also we wouldn't be requiring the 
application/registration fee. Bork said another option would be that the Council doesn't have to 
adopt it tonight and staff can bring it back next month. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page6 



Brittany Boothe said she's glad the Council is addressing backyard chickens. She said she 
remembers from one of her first Council meetings, a resident commented that she couldn't 
believe Veneta doesn't allow backyard chickens. 

Mayor Larson said the advantage of the license would make the process less intrusive. However, 
theoretically it has the same requirements but wouldn't need so much detail and would be less 
time consuming for staff. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said requiring a license would be 
less intrusive. 

Brittany Boothe said it seems like the permit requires a specific structure and would be more 
informative to residents on how to comply with the chicken ordinance. 

Ingham said Bork and Garbett will provide residents with information, describing the setbacks and 
so forth in a diagram. He said that information could go out regardless of what the Council 
decides. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said the Planning Commission did not discuss 
a permit verses a license application. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said the City is not trying to be intrusive we just want to listen and be 
respectful to everyone. 

ii. Consideration of Ordinance No. 511- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF VENETA LAND 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 493, EXHIBIT B, SECTIONS 4.02, 4.03 ARTICLE 5, AND SECTION 13.02, 
REGARDING THE KEEPING OF CHICKENS IN CITY LIMITS, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
511 by title only. Brittany Boothe seconded the motion which passed with a 
vote of 5-0. 

Ordinance No. 511 was read into the record by title only. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the second reading of Ordinance 
No. 511 by title only and for final enactment. Thomas Laing seconded the 
motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

Ordinance No. 511 was read into the record by title only, for final enactment and declaring an 
emergency. 

Bork said staff would also like direction from the Council to investigate a fee or recommend a fee 
to bring forward at the next Council meeting. 

Thomas Cotter said a fee would be useful as long as it's affordable. He recommended $5 per 
chicken. 

Ingham suggested rather than a set fee per chicken, a $25 application fee could be established. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Ingham said the application fee would be for 
chickens only. He said we don't regulate other livestock or pets other than dogs. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Schauer said the City doesn't regulate or license 
cats because it would be impossible to enforce. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page? 



Thomas Cotter said the largest resident turn out happened at a meeting when a possible cat 
registration was on the agenda. 

In response to a question from Herb Vloedman, Thomas Cotter said the Council adopted the 
permitting language and did not approve any permitting structure. 

Bork said the permit would be issued to the permit holder and not the residence. She said a 
tenant would also need written permission from the landlord to have chickens. 

Thomas Cotter said he is concerned about not including a renewal term. 

Ingham said the renewal could be tied to the fee that would be repaid every three years as part of 
the application process. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve a $25 permit fee for backyard 
chickens to renew every three years. 

Brittany Boothe said she's not convinced there should be a fee. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Thomas Cotter said requiring a renewable permit 
would allow the City to recover some enforcements costs. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she won't mind having that right to have chickens and pay the $25. 

Ingham said because the City is complaint driven; with the majority of the complaints received are 
within the parameters of City code. He said we're not trying to generate revenue with a renewable 
fee but to possibly recover some enforcement costs. 

Thomas Cotter said any enforcement will take away from the limited staff the City already has. 
He said even if it isn't a big event for the City, there are still costs involved. 

Tom Laing said the more it's known the more people will be raising chickens. 

Mayor Larson suggested if the fee is renewed every three years, it should be lower than $25. 

Joan Mariner suggested passing the resolution with the $25 permit fee and in a year or two 
reevaluate it to see if the resolution should be amended to include permit renewal language. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said attaching a fee would force residents to come to City Hall to realize 
there's a process to follow if they want to have chickens. 

Brittany Boothe didn't see the point of paying to have chickens. 

Thomas Cotter said if the City introduces a new activity, that isn't even partially funded and it 
requires staff time, it would take revenue from another source to maintain it. 

MOTION: Thomas Laing seconded the motion. 

Bork confirmed that the Council is directing staff to draft a resolution to include language for a $25 
backyard chicken permit fee which would renew every 36 months. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter withdrew his motion. Thomas Laing withdrew his second. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 8 



b) Business Registration Amendment 
i. Agenda Item Summary 

Bork said this comes before the Council to consider adoption of an amendment to the code 
regarding business registrations. She said this is a follow up to the Medical Marijuana 
Dispensaries (MMD's) recommended changes legal counsel made. Bork said there is a 
typographical error in the ordinance which was detected after the packets were mailed but has 
been corrected. 

ii. Consideration of Ordinance No. 512- AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5.05, BUSINESS 
REGISTRATION, OF THE VENETA MUNICIPAL CODE 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 
512 by title only. Thomas Laing seconded the motion which passed with a 
vote of 5-0. 

Ordinance No. 512 was read into the record for first reading by title only. 

c) Rural Tourism Marketing Program (RTMP) Fund Request from the Veneta Downtown Farmers' 
Market Board 

Bork said this is a follow up to last month's meeting regarding the Veneta Downtown Farmers' 
Market (VDFM) funding request. She said as the Council may recall, the Urban Renewal Agency 
recommended the remaining $500 for advertising come from Rural Tourism Marketing Program 
(RTMP) funds. Staff is asking the Council to approve the VDFM request for $500 be allocated from 
RTMP funds. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the expenditure of $500 is made 
from the Rural Tourism Marketing Program funds for the Veneta Downtown 
Farmers' Market advertising expenses. Brittany Boothe seconded the 
motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

2. Finance Director/City Recorder ...................................................................... Shauna Hartz 
a) Identity Theft 

i. Agenda Item Summary 
Hartz said in 2009 the Council adopted this program by resolution. She said cities providing 
utility services met the definition and were told we had to comply with newly adopted federal 
identity theft and prevention regulations and red flag rules. Staff has been working as 
required, on reviewing and evaluating the program and procedures to determine what is 
working well and if a reasonable person would catch any identity theft problems. Staff worked 
through a couple of reiterations and added definitions to terms, clarified expectations, 
reviewed the process for setting up new water/sewer accounts, and the steps to follow for 
existing water accounts. Staff has also updated the process regarding providing information 
to landlords, title companies, etc. She said the last part of the program is not specific to utility 
billing but more general operating procedures. Staff worked to enhance compliance and 
protection to citizens without taking too much extra staff time to implement. 

ii. Consideration of Resolution No. 1142 -A RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN IDENTITY THEFT 
PREVENTION PROGRAM AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 987 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1142. Thomas 
Laing seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 9 



3. Management Analyst. ..................................................................................... Katie Babits 
a) Classification and Compensation 

i. Agenda Item Summary 
Babits reviewed her memo and the attached compensation schedule with the Council. She 
said last year the Council approved adjusting the compensation once a year when the Oregon 
minimum wage changed rather than twice a year; as had been done in the past. She said this 
resolution does not affect salaried employees. Babits read the suggested motion to the 
Council. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Thomas Laing said he thought the federal 
minimum wage is $10.10. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Babits said the minimum age to work in 
Oregon is 16 but there are special provisions of state law that allow 14 year olds to work from 
7 a.m. to 7 p.m. only. She said the minimum wage is the same. 

Ingham said the agriculture industry has specific provisions addressing the age of workers. 

ii. Consideration of Resolution No. 1143 -A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE REVISED 
CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION SCHEDULE FOR HOURLY, TEMPORARY AND 
SEASONAL POSITIONS FOR 2014 AND REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 1119 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve Resolution No. 1143. Brittany 
Boothe seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

4. Public Works Director .................................................................................. Kyle Schauer 
a) Request from Veneta Elementary to Waive the Pool Rental Fee 

Schauer reviewed the request from the Veneta Elementary Parent Action Group. He said the 
group is requesting the City Council waive the two hour pool rental fee in order to hold a 5th grade 
class celebration. He said 55 people using the pool would be about $200. He said past requests 
have been granted contingent on the requester paying the cost of lifeguards at a cost of $75, 
bringing the requested waiver amount to $125. Schauer said if granted this request would bring 
the total to $477 of the $500 annual cap. He said also four pool passes were previously donated 
to Elmira Elementary and Veneta Elementary Auctions, which brings the total to about $500. 

Mayor Larson reminded Schauer that pool passes were also committed to contestants of the "If I 
were Mayor" contest. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said a pool use request came in 
from Elmira Elementary but has since been withdrawn. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to authorize the waiver of $125 of pool rental 
fees for the Veneta Elementary event on June 18,2014. Thomas Laing 
seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

b) Update on the Easter Egg Hunt & Citywide Cleanup 

Schauer said Brittany Boothe provided a great recap of the Easter Egg Hunt. He said the event 
went very well and the volunteers pulled together to make a great event. The City held the 
annual citywide cleanup on May 3rd. He said that event was also well attended and due to the 
past winter storm activity, lots of debris was brought in including, but not limited to: 120 yards of 
used wood (like fencing); 230 yards of yard debris, 1.38 tons of metal, and tons of tires. He said 
they collected 6.18 tons of trash compared to the 13 tons collected last year. He said Sanipac 
provided lunch for the public works crew. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 10 



In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Schauer said many residents made numerous 
trips, but most of the debris was branches and limbs from the winter storms. He said a lot of 
residents expressed gratitude and thanked the crew for the opportunity the cleanup provided. He 
said a lot of the material gets recycled so it's not just going to the landfill. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said Sanipac pays for the disposal 
of all items collected at the cleanup as well as for its own crew. He said they also supplied all the 
trucks and drop boxes. He said some items are free to dispose because they can be recycled but 
total disposal costs paid by Sanipac were $2086. 

Ingham said assisting with the citywide cleanup is one of the terms of our franchise agreement 
with Sanipac. 

Schauer said in years past Sanipac brings the Duck Truck but because of the spring game, it 
was at Autzen. He said Sanipac usually serves lunch from the truck but this year the wife of a 
Sanipac employee provided lunch for the crew. He said they also filled seven 90 gallons rolling 
carts of shredded materials which was more than double from last year. 

Brittany Boothe said she was very touched by the thank you email Schauer sent out. She said it 
was very kind and she is proud to live in a city with such kind people. 

Schauer said the event went exceptionally well and everyone stepped up and worked as a great 
team. 

5. City Administrator. ........................................................................................ Ric Ingham 
a) Retirement Letter from Sgt. Doug Osborne, LCSO 

Ingham said Sgt. Osborne is retiring. He said he will be meeting with the recruitments. He said 
he hasn't had a chance to talk with Sgt. Osborne since he returned but hopefully he will hear 
from him soon. We're sorry to see him leave because he was a great sergeant in a long line of 
many that have served the City and surrounding community. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said the City of Creswell sent out 
an informal survey to its resident to find out if they would be in favor of a public safety fee 
included in their utility bills. He said if that's the case, Creswell will fund a third deputy for its 
patrols and won't need to share a deputy with Veneta. He said also, if that happens Veneta will 
continue with four deputies or go down to three. He said it's difficult to get a City employee to do 
the community policing needed without a reduction in the County's public safety contract. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Ingham said we will keep our current deputies but 
we may see a domino effect because Deputy Rogers is in line to move in to a sergeant's 
position in the next two to 12 months. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said he didn't hear about any 
police activity in the Perkins Estate area. 

Ingham said he will follow up with the deputies. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Hartz said the $5000 paid to LCOG covers last 
quarter's computer support and technical costs. She said that amount is based on how much 
time the LCOG IT person spends at the City. She said it also includes hosting the City's 
website, the City's network and servers. 

Ingham said that $5000 is split between five or six different funds. He said the total doesn't 
exceed the contract. He said Dan Bessette from LCOG provides the IT assistance. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 11 



In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Ingham said when the City's computer firewall 
crashed Workman and Dan Bessette from LCOG worked to get as much life out of it as they 
could but after a few days of continuous crashing staff went ahead and replaced it at a cost of 
about $6000. 

Schauer said the City also spent a lot of time making the transfer between internet providers. 

Ingham said in the long run, contracting with LCOG saves the City money because we only pay 
for assistance when we need it. He said a local provider would charge a flat monthly rate 
regardless of how much assistance we need. 

b) Questions from Councilors 

7. OTHER 

In response to questions from Victoria Hedenstrom, Mayor Larson said Mountain Hawk is the 
company providing the drawings of the historical panels. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said Pendleton Milling Co. 
provides the stakes for the Easter Egg Hunt. He said Swanson's Pest Control sprays for insects 
at all City facilities, and DLA Architect is the landscape architect providing the landscape 
preliminary drawings for the Highway 126 & Territorial corners. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Ingham said the Moose Lodge is included on the 
OLCC liquor renewal list to renew its license on July 1, 2015. 

Ingham suggested because the second May Council meeting is cancelled, the Council could 
meet sometime around Memorial Day to adopt the backyard chicken fee resolution. He said if 
not, it will have to wait until the June gth meeting. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Ingham said staff needs time to put together the 
permit. He said he will review any potential agenda items with the management team tomorrow. 

Ingham said Bill Baker, the branding consultant, will be here on June 5th for a community 
meeting scheduled upstairs at Lane Fire Authority at 6:30 p.m. Food will be provided. Ingham 
said he wanted to schedule that meeting prior to final adoption of the 2014-15 budget. 

Thomas Laing said he cannot attend. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she may not be there as well. 

Ingham thanked Hartz for the outstanding job she did while he was gone. He also thanked the 
Council for allowing him to take a sabbatical. 

Hartz said the May 20th Budget Committee meeting will begin at 5:30 pm. She said dinner will not be 
served. She doesn't anticipate a long meeting. 

Bork thanked the Council for the discussion on backyard chickens. 

Mayor Larson said the "If I were Mayor" contest attracted six posters from the elementary level and one 
entry from the high school level. She asked Council members if anyone was interested in judging the 
entries, she would like to meet before Wednesday, May 14th. 

After a brief discussion, Brittany Boothe, Mayor Larson, and Victoria Hedenstrom volunteered to judge 
the contest entries on Wednesday, May 14th at 4:30 pm at City Hall. 

8. ADJOURN 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 12 



Mayor Larson adjourned the Veneta City Council at 9:39 p.m. 

ATTE~~~ 
Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder 
(Minutes prepared by Dhenneman) 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
May 12, 2014 

Page 13 


